
           
Randi Stringham, Chair
Tim Patel, Vice-chair
Sonia Martinez, Board Member
Susan Rand, Board Member
Amanda Hofmann, Board Member      
Patty Smith, Board Member
Kasey Crutcher, Board Member

Mary Raum, Marketing Manager
 

 NOTICE OF MEETING
TOURISM ADVISORY BOARD

August 17, 2021
11:00 AM

Council Chambers
504 N. Queen Street

Palestine, TX

 

Zoom Link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81988185060?pwd=Z21CZWVZaVgrcjdjUEY5cEM3RmlUUT09

Meeting ID: 819 8818 5060
Passcode: 924564
One tap mobile
+13462487799,,81988185060#,,,,*924564# US

Note: when you are joining a Zoom meeting by phone, you can use your phone’s dial pad to enter the
commands *6 for toggling mute/unmute and *9 to “raise your hand.”

Follow us live at: facebook.com/palestinetx/

           
A. CALL TO ORDER

 
  

B. PROPOSED CHANGES OF AGENDA ITEMS
 

  

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Any citizen wishing to speak during public comments regarding an item on or off the
agenda may do so during this section of the agenda. All comments must be no more than
five minutes in length. Any comments regarding items, not on the posted agenda may not
be discussed or responded to by the Board. Members of the public may join via Zoom or in
person.
 

  

D. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES
 

  

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   
1. Review and consider approval of the July 27, 2021 Board Minutes.

 
F. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS   

1. Review and consider the Hotel Occupancy Tax Application for restoration efforts for the Mt.
Vernon A.M.E. Church located at 913 Calhoun St.

2. Review, consider and recommend one of the submissions for Mural RFP 2021-005 to be
awarded.

3. Review and consider submissions for Mural RFP 2021-006.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81988185060?pwd=Z21CZWVZaVgrcjdjUEY5cEM3RmlUUT09
http://www.facebook.com/palestinetx/


3. Review and consider submissions for Mural RFP 2021-006.
 

G. ADJOURNMENT
 

  

I certify that the above Notice of Meeting was posted on the outdoor bulletin board at the main entrance
to City Hall, 504 N. Queen Street, Palestine, Texas, in compliance with Chapter 551 of the Texas
Government Code on  Friday, August 13, 2021, at 5:00 p.m.

Mary Raum, Tourism Marketing Manager
  
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA)
PERSONS IN NEED OF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING
SHALL, CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE VIA EMAIL AT therrera@palestine-tx.org or
903-731-8414.

mailto:therrera@palestine-tx.org


Agenda Date: 08/17/2021
To: Tourism Advisory Board
From: Mary Raum, Tourism Marketing Manager
Agenda Item: Consider approval of the Tourism Advisory Board Meeting Minutes from July 27, 2021
Date Submitted: 08/13/2021

SUMMARY:
Review and consider approval of the July 27, 2021 Board Minutes

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Review and consider approval of the July 27, 2021 Board Minutes

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:

Attachments
TAB Meeting Minutes 7.27.21 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Tourism Advisory Board of July 27, 2021 

Page 1 of 2 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON  § 
CITY OF PALESTINE  § 
 
The Tourism Advisory Board of the City of Palestine, Texas convened in a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, July 27, 
2021 at 4:00 PM. for the Regular Meeting in the Palestine City Council Chambers at 504 N. Queen Street, with 
the following people present via ZOOM and/or in person: 

Randi Stringham 
Tim Patel 
Sonia Martinez 
Patty Smith 
Kasey Crutcher 
Staff present: Mary Raum, Lisa Denton, Greg Laudadio, April Jackson 
Guests Present: Jeremy Janz, Tabitha Enge 

 
CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR MEETING 
Randi Stringham called the Regular Meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
PROPOSED CHANGES OF AGENDA ITEMS 
None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 
Board Member Sonia Martinez announced that she will recuse herself from the meeting during the YMCA HOT 
Grant Application due to conflict of interest. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
MANAGERS REPORT 

1. Tourism Marketing Manager, Mary Raum, reported the May and June 2021 Tourism Reports to the 
board.   

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes of the May 4, 2021, Tourism Advisory Board Meeting were reviewed.  Motion was made by 
Patty Smith to approve as written, second by Sonia Martinez.  All in favor, motion passed. 

 
BOARD DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 

1. Discussion and update on the Palestine Community Forest Committee Project.  Randi Stringham and 
Patty Smith shared updates on their designated areas of responsibility for the project. Committee 
members have been watching webinars on trail construction ROI and design details. No action 
required. 

2. Sonia Martinez excused herself from the meeting for the next item. 
3. Staff presented the HOT grant application for the Palestine YMCA for the Chick-fil-A Fall Classic 

Soccer Tournament.  Also presenting was Jeremy Janz on behalf of the YMCA. Motion to approve 
$8,500.00 for the Palestine YMCA was made by Tim Patel, second by Patty Smith.  All in favor, none 
opposed, motion passed. 

4. Sonia Martinez rejoined the meeting. 
5. Staff presented the HOT grant application for the Mt Vernon AME Church for the preservation and 

restoration in the amount of $5,000.  A motion was made by Sonia Martinez to recommend the 
$5,000.00 to City Council and Patty Smith second the motion. After discussion, none were in favor 
and the motion died.  A second motion was made by Randi Stringham to table this application and 
have the applicant resubmit requesting up to $15,000.00.  The motion was second by Sonia Martinez.  
All in favor, none opposed.  Motion passed. 

 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Tourism Advisory Board of July 27, 2021 

Page 2 of 2 

 
ADJOURN 
With no other business to come before the Tourism Advisory Board, the meeting was adjourned by Randi 
Stringham at 4:35 pm. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2021. 
 
             
 
ATTEST:           Mary Raum, Tourism Marketing Manager 



Agenda Date: 08/17/2021
To: Tourism Advisory Board
From: Mary Raum, Tourism Marketing Manager
Agenda Item: Hotel Occupancy Tax Funding Application Consideration – Mt Vernon AME Church
Date Submitted: 08/10/2021

SUMMARY:
Review and consider the Hotel Occupancy Tax Application for restoration efforts for the Mt. Vernon
A.M.E. Church located at 913 Calhoun St. Built in 1921, this structure, listed on the Nation Register for
Historic Places is celebrating 100 years this year. The preservation of the church will allow the church to
be used as a place of worship, historic attraction and venue for special events in the future.  Upon
completion, church memorabilia and artifacts will be showcased promoting and education on African
American/Black heritage in the City.  This application meets the two part test and falls under the category
of Historical restoration and preservation projects or activities of advertising and conducting solicitation
and promotional programs to encourage tourists and convention delegates to visit preserved historic
sites or museums. The applicant is requesting $15,000.00.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Review and consider the Hotel Occupancy Tax application for funding in the amount of $15,000.00.

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:

Fiscal Impact
Fiscal Year: 2020/21
Budgeted Y/N: Y
Account #: 150-5-740-3350
Amount Requested: $15,000.00

Attachments
HOT Application - Mt Vernon 
Mt Vernon Cert of Ins. 
Mt Vernon Preservation Plan 



























Page 2 of 62 
 

 
 
Vicinity map.  
 

  
 
Site location. 913 East Calhoun           Aerial view of site. 
 



Page 3 of 62 
 

Scope 
 
The scope of this project is to conduct a field investigation and to create a Preservation Master 
Plan – Phase I. Phase 1 is to generally describe the most urgently projects. Included in Phase I is 
extensive field documentation but will not be included. Phase 2 is to be issued at a later date to 
expand on later phase projects and when combined with this Phase 1 will provide a more 
comprehensive master plan. Phase II would represent a complete Historic Structures Report. 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of the Phase I project is to: 
 

A. Document existing condition of the building. 
 

B. Present a prioritized list of issues needing to be addressed in order to preserve the building. 
 
C. Provide recommendations for restoration. 

 
D. Provide cost projections for initial phase projects. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 62 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS                   Page 
 
Exterior Photographs           5 
Mt. Vernon AME Floor Plans          7 
 
Background  
             
Phasing Summary          8 

 
Building Exterior 
 
Site             8 
Foundation             8 
Exterior Walls          12 
Doors            13 
Windows          17 
Exterior Stairs          20 
Roof            24 
Masonry          26 
Color Scheme           27 
 
Building Interior 
 
Floors           28 
Walls           30 
Ceilings          34 
Doors           36 
Multipurpose Stair         41 
Towers          42 
Bell Tower          43 
Pews           47 
Color Scheme 47  
Mechanical 47 
Electrical 48 
Plumbing 51 
Gas Heating 52 
Fire Sprinkler System 53 
Clocks 53 
Miscellaneous 54 
 
Floor Plans 59 
Phasing 60 
 
Appendix 62 
 



Page 5 of 62 
 

 
 
South Elevation. 
 

 
 
West Elevation. 
 



Page 6 of 62 
 

  
  
South Elevation. 
 

 
 
West Elevation. 



Page 7 of 62 
 

 
 
 
Mt. Vernon AME Floor Plans 
 



Page 8 of 62 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Phasing Summary 
 
Phase I Possibly to be conducted with volunteers and relatively low costs. 
Phase II Major structural stabilization of building and roof replacement. 
Phase III Additional repairs to preserve the building. 
Phase IV Building Sanctuary repaired to an occupiable condition. 
Phase V Restoration of remaining historic components. 
 
 
Building Exterior 
 
Site 
 
The rear of the Church gently slopes downward from north to south. Currently there is no paved 
parking. Under Phase IV it is recommended to at least pave an area for accessible parking and 
construct concrete walks to the northeast and northwest exterior doors. 
 
It is recommended to install exterior lighting along the north elevation to illuminate the parking 
area. It is also recommended to install site lighting in the lawn area on the south side of the 
building, extending to Calhoun Street. 
 
Foundation  
 
The foundation consists of original brick piers and a supplement of added modern concrete block 
piers. The perimeter grade beams are constructed of corbeled brick to an unknown depth. 
 
The site slopes upward from south to north. When observed from the crawl space, evidence of 
water infiltration was present along the south wall as well as high moisture content in soils along 
the southern areas of the east and west grade beams. It is probable site and/or roof runoff has 
been either ponding or running along the east and west perimeter walls and at some location(s) 
water is making its way into the crawl space. See Roof section of this report. In addition to a 
subsurface drain system, fine grading along the east and west exterior walls should be conducted 
to provide a slope of at least ¼ inch per foot away from the building. Swales extending north-
south should be constructed to move surface runoff towards the south (Calhoun Street). 
 
There are openings in masonry walls, around perimeter of windows and doors, and along the 
eaves which may allow water to migrate into the crawl space. 
 
In the Michael L. Marler, PE report of March 11, 2014 (Marler 2014) drainage issues are 
mentioned.  
 
Soils occurring in the central area of the crawl space appear relatively dry and powdery 
suggesting a high-water table or presence of ground water is not a significant contributing factor 
to settlement of piers. 



Page 9 of 62 
 

 
Due to moisture observed in the crawl space, the recommendations for interior debris removal, 
and non-original floor finish removal; it is recommended to treat the crawl space for termites. 
Disturbance of materials located within the interior may reveal active termites, removal of their 
food source may cause infestations elsewhere. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Eliminate water running along the exterior side of west and east walls by sloping grade 
away from the walls. Phase I. 

2. All piers located in the crawl space should be examined individually to ensure shims are 
in contact with pier top and sill above. Phase I. 

3. Install a wire mesh door to access crawl space to secure the opening and to allow 
ventilation. Phase II. 

4. Remove all wood lumber and debris to reduce possibility of termite infestation. Phase I. 
5. Apply termiticide to wood framing in the crawl space. Phase I. 

 
Refer to BBSE structural report included in the Appendix this report. 
 

 
 
Crawl space. Presence of moisture along the east grade beam. 
 



Page 10 of 62 
 

 
 
Crawl space. Evidence water had run along the south grade beam due to a previous heavy rain event. 
 

 
 
Crawl space, View to west. Several piers have settled and/ or rotated.  
 



Page 11 of 62 
 

 
 
Near northeast corner at Women’s restroom. Wood sill in contact with grade. 
 
 
 

 
 
Exterior, west grade beam. The bottom of the grade beam appears to contain a corbeled brick footing in lieu 
of concrete as noted in the structural report. 
 



Page 12 of 62 
 

Exterior Walls  
 
Exterior walls are of the initial brick veneer construction; ca 1921 was the era of transition from 
the bonded wall systems to the common brick veneer systems where a single wythe of brick are 
installed and secured laterally to wood framing. Exterior masonry is included in this section 
because it is an integral part of the exterior wall system. Note that this early veneer system did 
not incorporate a moisture barrier between the wood sheathing and back of brick. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Remove brick from the west and east Sanctuary gables. Phase II. 
2. Reinforce walls and add additional framing for cable bracing. Phase II. 
3. Install cable bracing in exterior west and east walls to restrain further outward movement. 

Phase II. 
4. Reinstall brick masonry. Phase II. 
5. Secure connections and install additional reinforcement in attic. Phase II. 
6. Repair and restore interior finishes in Sanctuary. Phase III. 
7. Replace deteriorated roof decking and replace the roof system. Phase II. 
8. Repoint all exterior masonry on remainder of building. This work can take place under 

any phase after cable bracing has been installed. Phase III. 
 

     
 
Balcony railing. Possible evidence of outward wall movement. 



Page 13 of 62 
 

  
 
Outward movement of Sanctuary east and west gables. 
 
 
 
Doors   
 
All exterior doors are modern except the one located at near the southeast building corner. The 
original wood exterior door is a half glass over three panel door with original hardware. This 
door also contains a transom window with its original hardware. The door has had some 
reinforcements added to the surface. The interior side of the door was originally natural wood 
finish and the exterior door and frame were painted white. The door and transom are restorable. 
 



Page 14 of 62 
 

  
 
Exterior door near southeast building corner. Interior and exterior view. 
 



Page 15 of 62 
 

 

 

 
 
Exterior door near southeast building corner. Transom window with original hardware. 
 
 
 



Page 16 of 62 
 

Modern exterior doors consist of laminated doors with metal surface panels. They are currently 
exhibiting signs of corrosion and will have a limited life. The oldest doors (ca. 1950’s) are 
located as door pairs for the two towers facing Calhoun Street. The exterior door into the 
Multipurpose room near the northwest corner is ca. 1970 to present era. These two door pair and 
the single door should be replaced during Phase V. 
 

  
 
Southeast tower ca. 1950’s door pair. Wood transom and frame are original. 
 

 
 
Face sheet separation of door edge. 
 



Page 17 of 62 
 

 

    
 
Modern residential hollow metal door. Wood frame members appear to have been selectively replaced. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Repair doors so they will function properly. Conduct minor repairs on hardware. Phase 
IV. 

2. Restore original Multipurpose room door and hardware. Phase V. 
3. Replace all hollow metal doors with replica wood doors. Phase V. 

 
Windows 
 
Windows include two generations, the original 1921 wood windows and later limited 
replacements being aluminum frame.  
 
Original wood windows are in poor but restorable condition, most retain the original glazing. 
The glazing puddy is in need of replacement on almost all. Due to cost and other needed repairs 
of higher priority, restoration of the original wood windows has been placed under Phase IV. It 
would be beneficial if the original wood windows could be simply painted with a white primer to 
cover exposed bare wood in an effort to temporarily preserve the frames and sashes. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
1. Remove all aluminum framed windows and install new replica windows. Phase V. 
2. Restore all original wood windows. Phase IV. 
 



Page 18 of 62 
 

 
 
Upper gothic window is original wood framed. Six lower are aluminum. Typical for 3 locations of Sanctuary. 
 

 
 
All lower, rectangular, windows of the Sanctuary are non-original aluminum frame. 
 



Page 19 of 62 
 

 
 
Example of original wood framed window with original glazing. 



Page 20 of 62 
 

  
 

 
Original window hardware. 
 
 
Exterior Stairs 
 
Northwest Stair 
 
The northwest entry has had a ramp constructed to replace an earlier stair. The ramp does not 
comply with the Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) or the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Since this is a secondary entry/ exit located on a secondary façade, the existing ramp 
should be replaced with a compliant ramp and handrails. The opening facilitates a 36 inch wide 
door. 
 



Page 21 of 62 
 

 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Remove the existing concrete ramp and replace with an accessible ramp with handrails. 
Phase IV. 

 
 
South Stair 
 
The south stair consists of three concrete segments and is located at the primary façade which 
fronts on East Calhoun Street. Doors located in each tower connect the exterior with the 
Sanctuary. The stair configuration does not comply with current codes in respect to egress or 
accessibility requirements, however this is a historic building, and the local code official will be 
responsible for determining if additional modifications are required. 
 
There is a significant grade difference between the street and the stair system. It is doubtful that 
persons with difficulty walking will utilize this entry/ exit, they will park at the rear of the 
Church and use ramps recommended in other sections of this report. 
 
For the purposes of this master plan, it is recommended to only install additional pipe railings so 
each stair run will have a rail on each side. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Add pipe handrails. Phase IV. 
 



Page 22 of 62 
 

 
 
South stair. 
 
Northeast Stair 
 
A stair once existed at this door location; it is suspected it was of wood construction. This door 
location should serve as an egress door, it is on a secondary façade, and should contain an 
accessible ramp similar to the replacement ramp described for the Northwest door. Phase IV. 
 

 
 
Northeast building corner. 



Page 23 of 62 
 

 
 
Northeast door. A wood stair probably was at this location. 



Page 24 of 62 
 

Roof 
 
The composition shingle roof was last replaced about 1996 (plywood sheathing was added) and 
is currently in poor condition. Over the last few years it has experienced damage which included 
open voids; also, interior finishes and furnishings have been water damaged. The roof should be 
completely replaced, but only after structural repairs, until then it is recommended to continue to 
patch isolated leaks as they develop. 
 
Scaffolding was erected ca. 2015 to prevent a possible collapse of the Sanctuary roof. At that 
point in time the roof had moved downward, the east and west exterior walls had moved 
outward, and it was speculated the roof would not be able to withstand a substantial snow/ ice 
event during the next winter. As an economical and temporary measure, a metal scaffolding 
system was erected inside the Sanctuary to relieve live and dead load forces acting on the roof 
and walls. Refer to BBSE Structural Report dated July 15, 2016 for further descriptions and 
recommendations. Note that the report is general; specific modifications should require detailed 
plans and specifications prior to alterations. 
 
There was no evidence observed that indicated the building originally had gutters and 
downspouts. Due to damage and settlement to perimeter grade beams from water discharge it is 
recommended to install a system to carry water from the roof to the street. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Remove existing roof system, replace any deteriorated decking and install a new shingle 
system. Phase III. 

2. Install gutters, downspouts and subsurface drain system. Phase IV. 
 

 
 
Aerial view of roof. 



Page 25 of 62 
 

 
 
Attic, near southwest tower. Custom built scissor trusses. 
 

 
 
Sanctuary. Scaffolding erected to partially transfer roof loading. 



Page 26 of 62 
 

 

 
 
Example of roof opening where day light is visible from below. 
 
Masonry 
 
Masonry of both towers was pointed and repaired in 2015. The remainder of the building is in 
need of limited brick replacement and about 85% repointing (exclusive of structural repair 
areas). 
 

  
 
Suspected limestone cornerstone from pre-1921 building.           Cornerstone on southwest tower. 
 
 
Also, see Exterior Walls. 



Page 27 of 62 
 

Color Scheme 
 
The exterior side of original window frames and sashes were painted white. All exposed wood 
trim and casings were painted white. All subsequent repainting were variations of basic whites. 
No other colors were discovered during a limited paint investigation. 
 
It is recommended to paint all exterior exposed wood white under Phase IV. 
 

 
 
View of southeast building corner showing painted white trim. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 28 of 62 
 

Building Interior 
 
Floors 
 
It appears original flooring throughout the building is a single layer of 3 ¼” tongue and groove 
long leaf pine. In most cases the original flooring has been overlaid with a subsequent finish of 
plywood and/ or carpet, or sheet vinyl. 
 
The foundation system has been repaired at least twice. There are a number of floor areas which 
appear to be unlevel but it can’t be determined if the issue is with the overlay materials or if the 
original wood floor is unlevel due to inconsistent joist elevation or isolated deterioration. 
Temporarily patch floors until restoration. 
 
The Balcony floor has been overlaid with plywood. The stored (loose) original pews should be 
moved to the first level to reduce weight. Remove plywood overlay and determine condition of 
original wood flooring. It may be necessary to remove a small area of original flooring to 
determine joist size and spacing; repairs may be required as it is unknown why plywood was 
installed (it could have been to reduce the noise a single layer wood floor typically will make 
when walked along). 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Remove all carpet (that is not glue applied) and debris. Phase I. 
2. Conduct environmental investigation and abatement (if necessary). Phase I. 
3. Determine level and soundness of original wood flooring. Phase II. 
4. Replace deteriorated long leaf pine flooring where necessary. Protect with plywood. 

Phase IV. 
5. Restore and finish all long leaf pine flooring. Phase V. 

 



Page 29 of 62 
 

 
 
View upward from crawl space. Underside of long leaf pine flooring of Sanctuary. 
 

 
 
Non-historic sheet vinyl, over plywood (bottom of photo), over original wood flooring (top of photo). 



Page 30 of 62 
 

 
 
Area where later overlays have been removed and original wood flooring is exposed. 
 
Walls 
 
Original interior wall finishes can be classified into two categories; 1) Fully wall papered, and 2) 
bead board wainscot with wall paper above. Originally there was no gypsum board in the 
building. A 1997 preservation report refers to plaster; based upon this investigation plaster does 
not exist in the building. Where walls do not contain bead board wainscot, they are sheathed with 
1x6 tongue and groove planking run horizontal. 
 
It is anticipated that structural repairs and modifications will require removal and subsequent 
damage to interior wall finishes. Since most gypsum board has been damaged due to various 
issues; it is recommended to completely remove in all prominent rooms. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Remove all gypsum board material (pending environmental report). Phase I. 
2. Remove all wall paneling. Phase I. 

 



Page 31 of 62 
 

 
 
Example of interior wall construction. 
 

 
 
Sanctuary, west wall. Wainscot numbered and removed. 



Page 32 of 62 
 

 
 
Two generations of wall paper. First layer of white is suspected of being an underlayment installed with the 
first generation cloth backing and floral paper. 
 

 
 
Enlarged view of floral print detail. 



Page 33 of 62 
 

 

 
 
Remains of original wall papers backing under paneling. 
 

 
 
Sanctuary. Example of later added gypsum board damage due to outward wall movement and moisture. 



Page 34 of 62 
 

Ceilings 
 
Two ceiling types were originally installed; 1) Wall papered, and 2) bead board. 
 
Bead board ceilings, casings, doors, base boards, and wainscoting were all of natural wood 
finish. It appears the material was varnished with a mix of light stain. This would have resulted 
in a medium dark appearance such as light walnut and would have brought out the wood 
graining. One protected ceiling location was observed which revealed an aged dark color 
suggesting the stain was low quality; much of the darkness has developed by a century of aging. 
All bead board ceilings had a wood moulding matching the ceiling finish (most have now been 
replaced or painted). 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Remove all ceiling material back to wood (material should be tested for asbestos prior to 
disturbance). Phase III. 

2. Replace deteriorated bead board in Sanctuary. Phase IV. 
3. Install ceiling wall paper where it originally occurred. Phase V. 
 

 

 
 
Bead board ceiling. Shiny areas are possibly a later application of polyurethane. 
 



Page 35 of 62 
 

 
 
Beadboard ceiling with one generation of finish. Original moulding has been painted. 
 

 
 
Ceiling paper and ceramic light fixture mounting base. 



Page 36 of 62 
 

Doors 
 
Almost all interior wood doors are original and are in restorable condition. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
1. Repair doors so they will function properly. Conduct minor repairs on hardware. Phase 

IV. 
2. Restore all original doors and hardware. Phase V. 
 

 
 
Original doors are 5 panel and had a natural wood finish (arrow). 
 



Page 37 of 62 
 

  
 
Original interior door hinge with remaining original finish.  Modern replacement hinge. 
 

  
 
Typical original interior door latchset.          Probable white ceramic replacement knob. 
 



Page 38 of 62 
 

    
 
Ca. 1950’s latchset. Evidence of removed rim latchset.  Chiseled out casing for rim latch receiver. 
 



Page 39 of 62 
 

 
 
Narrow width, two panel door (24 inch Restroom door). Door and casings have been painted. 
 

  
 
Former door location. Undetermined reasoning for previous configuration. Needs additional investigation. 
It is possible the original floor plans did not include indoor plumbing and the restrooms were added later. 
 



Page 40 of 62 
 

 
 
Original door hardware later reinstalled upside down. 
 

 
 
Second level. Plain wood doors are possibly ca. 1950’s. 



Page 41 of 62 
 

Multipurpose Room Stair 
 
The stair leading up to the second level containing the Pastor’s are is original to the building and 
its railing construction is similar to the Balcony railing. The stair and its components retain the 
original finish. The stair appears stable; treads and risers are secure.  
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Protect the stair from damage during work of all phases. 
2. Clean and touch up finish. Phase V. 

 

 
 
Multipurpose. Original stair. 



Page 42 of 62 
 

Towers 
 
Both towers do not have finish materials above the rooms below. Masonry was restored under a 
previous project. 
 
There are various locations where the 1x6 tongue and groove sheathing is deteriorated, especially 
at the corners. Since it is not practical to remove masonry to replace the sheathing, plywood 
panes could be added to the interior face of wood studs. During this procedure, additional brick 
ties could be added to restore the restraint system which currently includes deteriorated 
corrugated brick ties. 
 

 
 
View upward in southwest tower. 



Page 43 of 62 
 

Bell Tower 
 
The stair and upper landing connect the southeast entry area with the Balcony and has 
completely been painted an orange-red. Wainscoting, doors, and trim within the room has also 
been painted. All paint should be removed and woodwork returned to its natural finish. 
 
It is recommended to reinforce the tower attic as with the southwest tower. The original bell is 
present in the southeast tower and is in working condition. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Clean and lubricate bell and moving parts. Phase IV. 
2. Restore finishes in the room. Phase V. 

 

 
 
Southeast bell tower stair. 



Page 44 of 62 
 

 
 
Underside of stair. 
 

 
 
Residue of original wood finish. 



Page 45 of 62 
 

 
 
Crude repair to original door. 
 

   
 
Probably a reinstalled original spring bolt (left) and modern knob on 1950’s exterior door (right). 



Page 46 of 62 
 

 
 
Steel bell system. Blue-gray color plank is unique and may have been shipped with the bell. 
 

 
 
Pull rope.  
 



Page 47 of 62 
 

Pews 
 
There are approximately seven original wood pews located on the Balcony. The original pews 
should be restored and used in the Sanctuary as a part of Phase IV. Replicas could be constructed 
to complete seating under Phase V.  
 

  
 
Original pews.        Non-original pews.    
 
 
Color Scheme  
 
The interior color scheme was fairly simple. All woodwork was natural finish, dark color. Non-
wood finished walls and ceilings were papered. 
 

1. Restore all original finishes. Phase V. 
 
Mechanical 
 
The original building did not contain an HVAC cooling system. It is suspected the building was 
heated with coal or wood burning heaters. Two possible locations for heater flues were observed; 
one at the southeast corner of the Sanctuary and one on the east wall of the Multi-purpose Room. 
A new concealed heating and cooling system(s) is recommended when the building is restored to 
an occupiable condition. As a part of Phase IV, replica heaters could be installed. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Install dehumidifiers throughout building. Phase III. 
2. Install new heating and cooling systems. Phase IV. 
3. Install replica wood burning heaters. Phase V. 

 
 
 



Page 48 of 62 
 

 
 
Sanborn Map image, 1935. Noted as “Heat: Stoves”. 
 

  
 
Sanctuary. Exterior heater chimney.            Multi-purpose. Interior heater chimney. 
 
 
Electrical 
 
The existing electrical system is a multitude of wiring and switchgear types, installed over 
various eras of time. The entire system should be replaced; initially from the meter to a new 
disconnect and main panel board. The new main panel board should be sized to accommodate 
future phases and ultimately a completely new system. Sufficient spares should be included to 
facilitate new electrical HVAC and instantaneous water heaters.  
 
It will be a challenge to locate replacement blobs matching original. Both ceiling and wall 
fixtures probably the same size and style. Bare bulb fixtures are restorable in many cases, if not 
replicas are available. All light fixtures should be restored and re-wired prior to reactivation. 
Until restoration can take place, temporary modern fixtures should be installed. 
 



Page 49 of 62 
 

Recommendations: 
 
 
1. Replace electrical infrastructure from meter to a new main panel board and disconnect. 

Phase III. 
2. Replace selected areas of electrical components to provide limited HVAC, lighting and 

power. Phase III. 
3. Completely replace all electrical components. Phase IV. 
4. Install a smoke alarm system. Phase III. 
5. Install emergency egress lighting. Phase IV. 
6. Install wireless internet service. Phase V. 
7. Install supplemental can light fixtures. Phase IV. 
8. Rewire and reinstall original light fixtures. Phase V. 
 
 

 
 
Wiring sandwiched between second generation ceiling wall paper and fiberboard ceiling tile. 
 



Page 50 of 62 
 

  
 
Original light fixture and globe.             Original wall fixture base. 
 

   
 
Ceramic base with bare bulb fixture. 
 
 



Page 51 of 62 
 

Plumbing 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Replace limited water supply piping. Phase III. 
2. Construct at least one working rest room with rough finishes. Phase III. 
3. Reconstruct the second rest room and Pastor’s rest room on the second level. Phase IV. 
4. Install plumbing in Multi-purpose Room to make room functional. Phase V. 

 

 
 
Cast iron waste plumbing in restroom area. 
 

 
 
Second floor. Pastor’s restroom. 
 



Page 52 of 62 
 

Gas Heating 
 
Gas space heaters and gas water heaters have been installed post WWII. The galvanized and 
black pipe system has deteriorated to the point it should be completely removed. Abandoned gas 
jets present a trip hazard and should all be removed. It is recommended to remove all gas 
infrastructure, remaining heaters, and water heaters under Phase I. It is recommended the Church 
consider an all-electric system for heating in a future restoration. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Remove all gas piping, heaters and water heaters. Phase I. 
2. Install a new electric heat system with a new HVAC system. Install instantaneous water 

heaters for hot water. Phase IV. 
 

 
 
Gas jet. Potential trip hazard. 
 

  
 
Vestibule, west end. Gas water heater flue.   North elevation. Water heater flue. 
 



Page 53 of 62 
 

 
 
Non-original gas space heater. 
 
Fire Sprinkler System 
 
Fire sprinkler systems are required for assembly occupancy, combustible construction type 
buildings; it is not only for life safety but to protect the building. These systems have become 
more affordable in recent decades resulting from code requirements as the number of installers 
and product availability have significantly increased. 
 
The recommendation is placed under Phase IV when the building is again occupiable and before 
finishes are installed or restored. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Install a fire sprinkler system. Phase IV. 
 
Clocks 
 
It appears there were an early generation of wall clocks, one in the Sanctuary and one in the 
Multipurpose room. The remaining clock located on the balcony fascia is a modern plastic clock. 
It is recommended to install new clocks, representative of the 1920’s, and with a wood enclosure. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Install replica clocks. Phase V. 



Page 54 of 62 
 

 

   
 
Modern clock. 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Security Alarm 
  
Recommendations: 
 

1. Install a security alarm system with smoke detectors. Phase III. 
 
Signage 
 
The restroom signage appears to be ca. 1970’s adhesive applied. New signage could be stenciled 
or enameled metal, occurring above the restroom doors. TAS compliant signage should be 
considered even though it may not be required. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Remove non-original signage. Phase I. 
2. Install period appropriate signage. Phase V. 
3. Install TAS compliant signage. Phase V. 

 



Page 55 of 62 
 

 
 
Ca. 1970’s signage. 
 
 
Wall Mounted Items 
 
There are a number of original wall mounted items which are a part of the original construction 
era and should be preserved. They are consistent with natural finished wood in appearance. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Preserve items. Reinstall at same locations after replica wall paper is installed on walls. 
Phase V. 

 
 

  
 
Original mirrored shelf in Men’s restroom.          Dressing mirror on door on 2nd level (has been painted). 
 



Page 56 of 62 
 

 
 
Northeast corner of Vestibule. Historic cabinet (red arrow) and non-historic cabinet (blue arrow). 

   
 
Original curved railing and table. 
 



Page 57 of 62 
 

 
 
Ca. 1950’s furnishings based on finish. 
 



Page 58 of 62 
 

 
 
Base cabinet. Hardware matches the painted upper cabinet in Vestibule, northeast corner. 
 
 



Page 59 of 62 
 

 
 
 
 
Original Floor Plans. 



Page 60 of 62 
 

Phasing 
 
The following section is included as a general description of how the overall restoration project 
might be divided into phases. This assumes funding for a comprehensive project is not possible 
to obtain at one time. 
 
The project will initially require unskilled labor, this may be conducted by volunteers under 
proper supervision. While the tasks may be quite simple, working in an old building that has 
been unoccupied can present hazardous conditions. 
 
It is not recommended to remove any inorganic floor material or gypsum board until the building 
has been tested for hazardous materials such as asbestos. Testing should be as required by the 
City of Palestine prior to demolition activities in a non-residential building and as conducted by a 
firm licensed to perform sampling and testing. The handling and removal of hazardous materials 
is regulated by the State Department of Health. 
 
Phase I 
 

1. Remove loose wood material from crawl space. 
2. Treat crawl space for termites. 
3. Repair foundation system (piers). 
4. Slope grade away from building perimeter walls. 
5. Have an environmental investigation conducted. 
6. Complete building documentation and second phase of this report. 
7. Remove all carpet. 
8. Clean out all debris from interior that are not salvage material or objects. 
9. Remove all moisture damaged items such as pews, papers, boxes …etc. 
10. Remove non-historic material and objects. 
11. Cover and protect objects that need to remain in storage in the building. 
12. Remove all debris from crawl space. 
13. Remove all gypsum board (provided it is free of hazardous materials). 
14. Remove all wood paneling. 

 
Phase II 
 

1. Sanctuary: 
a. Remove masonry from the east and west façade of the Sanctuary. 
b. Install restraint system to prevent further outward movement of Sanctuary walls. 
c. Conduct necessary repairs and reinforcement of wood framing system. 
d. Reconstruct masonry on east and west Sanctuary walls. 
e. Replace deteriorated roof framing and decking. Replace roof system. 

 
2. General 

a. Add ventilation to crawl space. 
b. Conduct floor survey after over-lay materials are removed. 

 



Page 61 of 62 
 

Phase III 
 

1. Replace electrical infrastructure. 
2. Install minimal electrical and mechanical systems. 
3. Install smoke alarm system. 
4. Install water service. 
5. Construct one working rest room. 
6. Install dehumidifiers to control interior moisture. 
7. Repairs to interior finish substrates. 
8. Repoint remainder of exterior masonry. 
9. Replace roof system. 

 
Phase IV (Places Sanctuary back into service) 
 

1. Install a fire sprinkler system. 
2. Complete remainder of electrical and HVAC systems. 
3. Replace plumbing systems. 
4. Restore the second floor Pastor’s area. 
5. Refurbish and service bell located in Bell Tower. 
6. Replace deteriorated flooring where necessary. 
7. Restore original pews currently located on the Balcony. Install in Sanctuary. 
8. Repair exterior woodwork and paint white. 
9. Construct accessible ramps at the exterior northeast and northwest doors. 
10. Construct accessible parking at north side of building. 
11. Additional railings at the south stairs. 
12. Install exterior lighting. 
13. Repair exterior doors. 
14. Restore wood windows. 
15. Install roof drainage system. 
16. Replace deteriorated ceiling bead board in Sanctuary. 

 
Phase V (Places remainder of building back into service and completes restoration) 
 

1. Install warming kitchen in Multi-purpose room. Renovate to usable condition. 
2. Restore remainder of original interior finishes; paint, natural finish wood, and wall/ 

ceiling papers. 
3. Install replica wood burning heaters. 
4. Install replica pews to complete seating Sanctuary and Balcony. 
5. Install replica clocks. 
6. Replace exterior doors with replicas of original period. 
7. Replace aluminum frame windows with replica wood windows. 
8. Restore, repair and finish wood flooring. 
9. Restore ceilings with paper finish. 

 
 
 



Page 62 of 62 
 

Opinion of Probable Restoration Costs (Fair market value, 2021) 
 
Phase I  $    34,700 
Phase II $  410,500 
Phase III $  195,000 
Phase IV $  380,600 
Phase V $  245,000 
 
Total as one project: $ 1,265,800. 
Cost per SF: $ 1,265,800/ 4,472sf = $283.05 
 
Estimated additional miscellaneous costs per phase: 
13.50% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 
 
BBSE Structural Report (2016) 
Michael L. Marler, PE Report (2014) 



Bugh & Brown Structural Engineering, LLC 
P.O. Box 8345 
Tyler, Texas 75711 
 
 
 
 
July 15, 2016       TBPE Firm No. F-15046  
    
 
Ms. Tabitha Enge 
913 East Calhoun Street 
Palestine, Texas 75801 
 
Re: Mount Vernon A.M.E. Church Roof Truss and Wall Framing Observation 

Palestine, Texas 
 BBSE Project No: 16075 
 
Dear Tabitha, 
 
On June 30, 2016, per your request, we conducted a visual observation of the building structure located 
at 913 East Calhoun Street in Palestine, Texas.  The purpose of the site visit was to observe the condition 
of the existing roof and support structure and to determine the limits of damage as well as providing 
recommendations for stabilizing the roof structure.   
 
Building Description 
 
The building consists of a two-story, wood framed structure supported on a suspended foundation.  The 
roof consists of hipped and gabled conditions and the entire roof is covered with composition asphaltic 
shingles.  The foundation appears to be a pier and beam system with a crawlspace.  The perimeter stem 
wall consist of continuous multi-whythe brick masonry bearing on an assumed continuous concrete 
footing below grade.  The interior wood load bearing walls and floor framing are supported on eight-inch 
Concrete Masonry Unit (CMU) plinths at varied spacing.  The CMU plinths are founded on precast 
concrete pads bearing on grade in the crawlspace.  The exterior walls of the building are covered with a 
brick veneer.  The site slopes from north to south and there is a moderate change in grade across the 
property.  The building is rectangular in plan and for the purpose of this report, faces south.   
 
Based on the information provided in the 1997 Mount Vernon A.M.E. Church Preservation Plan, 
submitted by Carter Design Associates from Austin, Texas and Mark A. Thacker, with Mark Thacker, 
AIA Commercial & Preservation Architecture, the following timeline of construction and repairs 
associated with the buildings structure was determined: 
 

 According to the buildings cornerstone, the original construction of the building occurred in 
1921. 

 The building was reroofed between December of 1995 and February of 1996.  This included 
removing all previous layers of roofing material, installing new sheathing and composition 
asphalt shingles. 

 Temporary shoring of the floor faming was required at locations of roof leaking occurred 
between December of 1995 and February of 1996 

 New shoring of the existing roof trusses was installed in the fall of 2015 to prevent further 
damage to roof and wall framing as well as preventing the potential collapse of the structure. 

 

BBSE 
   

Bugh & Brown Structural Engineering, LLC 

   



16075 – Mount Vernon AME Church Roof Truss and Wall Observation – Palestine, Texas Page 2 
July 15, 2016 

   

Observations and Discussions: 
 
Listed below are the observed conditions during the site observation on June 30, 2016.  Refer to Exhibits 
P1 and P2 for a roof plan with typical truss profiles as well as plan for the locations of photographs 
referenced below. 
 

 Existing exterior 2x6 wood stud walls along the east and west elevations had minor to moderate 
termite damage.  The existing interior horizontal wood shiplap siding was removed under the 
windows to due to evidence of termite damage within the shiplap.  The damaged studs should be 
repaired or replaced depending on extent of damage.  Due to the age and density of the existing 
wood framing material, replacing the existing stud framing with new wood framing of similar 
dimension is not acceptable.  New growth wood does not possess the same strength.  Repair 
framing should be designed and detailed by a licensed structural engineer in the state of Texas. 
Refer photographs 1 and 2. 

 Two lines of shoring had been placed along the transitions between the horizontal bottom chord 
section and the sloped bottom chord section of the existing wood scissor roof trusses. The roof 
trusses have excessive deflection and have been shored to prevent further deflection or potential 
failure.  The shoring consisted of multiple levels of steel scaffolding anchored to the floor.  Two 
layers of 3/4" plywood sheathing had been placed under the scaffolding to provide a uniform 
distribution of the roof loading to the floor framing.  Additional support material had been placed 
between the floor framing and the soil in the crawlspace to transfer all loading from the shoring.  
The shoring may be removed once the repair framing has been completed and a licensed 
structural engineer in the state of Texas has approved all repairs. 

 During the installation of the shoring of the roof trusses, a wood stud pony wall had been 
installed on top of the scaffolding.  The pony wall studs were attached to the horizontal bottom 
chord and sloped top chord of the existing wood scissor trusses.  Refer photographs 3-5. This 
framing should not be removed until all framing repairs have been completed and a licensed 
structural engineer in the state of Texas has approved all repairs.   

 The existing roof scissor trusses indicate evidence of failure at the sloped bottom chord to 
horizontal bottom chord connection.  Refer photograph 6. This failure is evident at nearly every 
roof trusses.  This failure has been exacerbated by deflection and rotation of the roof trusses.  
The connections at these locations should be designed and detailed by a licensed structural 
engineer in the state of Texas. 

 At the over-framed gable roof areas that frame perpendicular to the main ridge of the sanctuary, 
the deflection and connection failures are intensified due to the additional dead loading applied 
from the wood over-framing.  The observed inward lateral rotation in the gabled end walls above 
the typical truss bearing elevation along the east and west elevations, is evidence that the 
excessive downward deflection is translating to the over-framed gabled roof areas.  The existing 
roof truss framing and connections should be evaluated and repairs to connections should be 
provided by a licensed structural engineer in the state of Texas. 

 Lateral bracing of the existing roof trusses was not completed during the initial construction.  
Lateral bracing of the trusses should be installed to brace the trusses as well as the individual 
truss web members. The lateral truss bracing should be designed and detailed by a licensed 
structural engineer in the state of Texas. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



16075 – Mount Vernon AME Church Roof Truss and Wall Observation – Palestine, Texas Page 3 
July 15, 2016 

   

Conclusions and Recommendations: 
 
Based on the above observations, we make the following structural recommendations:   
 

1. The roof framing and support structure of the building is in poor condition and may present a 
hazard to the public if items noted are not corrected. 

2. All previous reports that have been provided for stabilizing and repairing the structure should be 
used in conjunction with this report. 

3. A certified pest control company licensed in the state of Texas should be retained to treat the 
entire building for termites.   

4. All woof framing that has been damaged by termites located on the east and west sides of the 
sanctuary should be removed and replaced. 

5. The roof structure should be leveled and repaired to prevent further lateral displacement of the 
east and west walls. 

6. Installation of multi-strand wire cabling or rods should be installed near the top of the walls 
along the east and west sides of the sanctuary to prevent further lateral displacement from 
existing scissors roof trusses. 

7. Once the walls and roof trusses have been completely leveled and repaired, new roof truss 
bracing should be installed in the attic space to brace the trusses laterally as well as the 
individual truss web members.   

8. All repairs noted in this report should be designed and detailed by a structural engineer licensed 
in the state of Texas. 

9. Our opinion of probable cost for repair of the structure is approximately sixty-thousand dollars 
($60,000). 

 
The opinions and comments provided as part of this report are based on field observations as part of our 
services.  Bugh & Brown Structural Engineering, LLC has ascertained to the best of our ability the 
visually apparent structural defects.  However, as field observations were conducted in a building in 
which portions of the structural framing were concealed by the building finishes, Bugh & Brown 
Structural Engineering, LLC cannot be responsible for failing to ascertain any structural deficiencies 
which were not visible due to existing conditions in the building.  No warranty, either expressed or 
implied, regarding the building structure is intended. 
 
If you need additional information, please feel free to contact our office. 
Sincerely, 

 

Michael E. Bugh, P.E.       
Principal 
 
 







16075 – Mount Vernon AME Church Roof Truss and Wall Observation – Palestine, Texas 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photograph 2 – Typical Termite Damage at Windows along East and West Walls of Sanctuary. 

Photograph 1 – Typical Termite Damage at Windows along East and West Walls of the Sanctuary. 



16075 – Mount Vernon AME Church Roof Truss and Wall Observation – Palestine, Texas 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photograph 4 – Typical Pony Wall Studs Attached to Top and Bottom Chords of Existing 
Roof Scissor Trusses. 

Photograph 3 – Typical Horizontal Bottom Chord to Sloped Bottom Chord Transition. 



16075 – Mount Vernon AME Church Roof Truss and Wall Observation – Palestine, Texas 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photograph 6 – Typical Sloped Bottom Chord Connection Failure. 

Photograph 5 – Typical Pony Wall Studs Attached to Top and Bottom Chords of Existing 
Roof Scissor Trusses. 















































Agenda Date: 08/17/2021
To: Tourism Advisory Board
From: Mary Raum, Tourism Marketing Manager
Agenda Item: Review and consider submissions for Mural RFP 2021-005
Date Submitted: 08/11/2021

SUMMARY:
The City of Palestine published Mural RFP 2021-005 for service to design and paint a large mural on
the Palestine Herald Press Footing Wall located at 519 Elm Street running along Cedar Street. 
Submissions were completed through the RFP process and the tourism Advisory Board will review and
select the design and artist that will be awarded the project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Review, consider and recommend one of the submissions for Mural RFP 2021-005 to be awarded.

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:

Fiscal Impact
Fiscal Year: 2020/21
Budgeted Y/N: Y
Account #: 150-5-740-3350
Amount Requested: $15,000.00

Attachments
Seth Blood Mural Submission 2021-005 
Dace Kidd Mural RFP 2021-005 
Mural RFP Deanna Frye 2021-005 
Frye Rendering 
Frye Rendering 2 
Frye Color Pallet 
Frye Mural Example 





















Request for Proposals RFP 2021-005
Project: Palestine Herald Press Parking Lot Footing Wall

By

Dace Kidd

www.MuralArtisttx.com

dacekidd@gmail.com
903.258.7274

4500 Gretna Green Lane
Tyler, TX 75703



2

	 I am very excited to have an opportunity to create a proposal for a mural that will be located 
in Palestine’s Old Town area. I am an artist from Latvia, a small country in North-East Europe, where 
downtown is the city’s heart and a destination for culture. I have resided in Tyler, TX for over ten 
years, where I have created many of my major public art projects which contribute to Tyler’s art 
scene: “Eyes of Tyler,” “Wings of Tyler,” “Hello! I Love You, Tyler!”, “777 Historic Azalea District,” 
to name a few (I am still surprised how quickly these murals have become Tyler landmarks). I enjoy 
collaborating with and including the local community near my mural installations. My most recent 
project for the City of Longview are “Unity mural” and “Flower Power mural” which is the biggest 
mural in East Texas. During this project many children, who were participating in a summer camp 
sponsored by the Longview Museum of Fine Arts, painted along side me for multiple days. 
	 I started studying art when I was seven years old. From an early age, I decided to become a 
classically trained painter. In the Art Academy of Latvia, I was introduced to the discipline of monu-
mental art like mosaic and fresco while also studying figure drawing and painting. Continuing my 
education at the Accademia di Belle Arti Palermo on the island of Sicily, I had the opportunity to learn 
master’s techniques within the discipline of mural painting and conservation. When I moved to the 
United States ten years ago, I was very excited to apply my skills and knowledge to studio painting 
and commission-based projects while also designing and executing site-specific mural installations. 
Receiving my United States citizenship four years ago motivated me to create work that will connect 
the community, improve the quality of life, and encourage us to reflect on what matters most. I have 
even started a separate business – Mural Artist TX. 
	 Please forgive me if one of my words in English is not perfect. English is my fifth language, 
and I am still learning the Texan version. 
	 I have included with the project proposal: idea sketches which I am willing to modify and 
collaborate with you, my resume, references, examples of past projects, and a proof of liability 
insurance of $1.000.000. I always create a time-lapse video of the mural painting that I share with 
my client and upload it on my You-Tube channel Mural Artist TX. 
Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,
Dace Kidd



3

Project Description:

First stage: Site inspection for safety issues; we are looking for overhead power-lines or slippery 
surfaces, etc. Inspect the wall to determine the necessary prep-work to ensure the paint’s best 
adhesion. Decide if any repairs are required. 
Second stage: When the wall is cleaned by the City of Palestine, it will be primed with the appropriate 
primer coat. One or two coats of primer, depending on coverage. I highly recommend using Extreme 
Bond Primer by Sherwin Williams that is designed to adhere to uneven and previously exposed to 
the elements or slick surfaces and provides excellent binding with Resilience Exterior Latex paint 
by Sherwin Williams that has UV protective properties and a limited lifetime warranty, along with 
superior moisture resistance (you can even paint with this paint during mild rain). I have used both 
of these products for over seven years, in many different environments, and they stand the test of 
time without having an extra protective coating applied.  
Third stage: The design of the mural is projected and traced on the wall after sunset. This ensures an 
exact representation of the desired perspective by creating detailed parameters I can work within. 
Fourth stage: The mural painting begins along with custom mixing and blending colors to achieve 
the look of the design. Multiple coats of Resilience will be used to achieve the desired color density.
Fifth stage: If you insist, an anti-graffiti coating is applied to the mural after it’s dried. 

Material list:

Projecting supplies: We shall need a power source (110V), extension cords, computer, projector, 
ladders, drawing tools, kneeling pads.

Painting and priming supplies: We will need roller poles, rollers, roller covers, brushes, painter’s 
tape, primer (7 gallons to cover ~ 1278 sq ft of the mural), paint (20 gallons to do at least two 
coats and mix many different custom shades), ladders, step-stool, scaffolding, kneeling pads, tarps. 

Video recording supplies: Camera, stand.

 

Artist Fee & Material Breakdown: 

Materials Cost (tax included):

Material Cost
Painting supplies for painting the mural on community painting, except for paint and 
primer

$2500

Extreme Bond Primer 7 gal (1 gallon - $71.45 including sales tax) $500.15
Resilience Exterior Latex different colors 20 gallons (1 gallon - $79.02 including 
sales tax)

$1580.4

Vandl-Guard anti-graffiti coating 12 gal (1 gallon - 62 including sales tax)* $744
Design labor $50 per hour $300
Artist labor, assistant fee ($50 per hour - projecting 160 h of labor)
or ~$7 per square foot.

$9375.45

Total $15,000
	

*Vandl-Guard anti-graffiti coating:

In my experience painting murals in Texas (primarily Tyler, Longview and Dallas/Fort Worth 
metroplex) for the last five years, I have never experienced a positive return on investment from 
using the anti-graffiti coating. One coat provides a 1-year material and labor warranty. To ensure five 
years of warranty, two coats must be applied. Five gallons of Vandl-Guard (industry-standard anti-
graffiti coating) covers 1250 sq ft (the mural wall is ~1278 sq ft). 1 gallon cost $62. Because I use 
Resilience Exterior Latex paint and retain a color and mixing list of the paints used for the project, 
I will agree to repair the mural if damaged or vandalized at no additional cost to you. In my six  
years of local experience painting large outdoor murals, I have yet to encounter a situation where 
anti-graffiti coatings would have been a good investment.  



4

Palestine Colors



5

Dogwood Blooms 



6

Modern Palestine



7

Modern Palestine - Dogwood, Rails, History, Future



8

Palestine BLOOM!



9

Old Town Blooms! Black and White Blooms



10

Old Town Palestine Vibes



11

Sincerely, Hospitality! White and Pink



12

Sincerely, Hospitality! White and Blue



13

Sincerely, Hospitality! Blue and Colors



14

Dogwood and Wing



15

Dogwoods and Wings



16

Old Town Blooms in Blue



17

Have Fun Be Happy Old Town Palestine



18

Blooms and Rails



19

Welcome to Palestine!



20

Welcome to Palestine in Blues



21

Examples:
Flower Power, Longview, TX



22

Examples:
Flower Power, Longview, TX



23

Examples:
Wings of Tyler, Tyler, TX



24

Examples:
Todo Con Amor, Tyler, TX



25

Examples:
Eyes of Tyler, Tyler, TX



26

Examples:
One McKinney, Dallas, TX



27

Examples:
Never Give Up and I Still Believe, Tyler, TX



28

DACE KIDD
Born 1987 in Riga, Latvia. Lives and works in Tyler, Texas.

EDUCATION
2011 		 B.F.A., Latvian Art Academy, Riga, Latvia
2008-2009 	Accademia di Belle Arti Palermo, Italy

AWARDS		
2016 		 International Emerging Artist Award, Dubai, UAE

PUBLIC ART

2021		  Flower Power, Longview, Tx
		  Unity Mural, Longview, Tx
2020		  777 Azalea District, Tyler, Tx
		  Keep Tyler Beautiful, Tyler, Tx
2019		  Wings of Tyler, Tyler Tx
		  Tower Plaza Garden Mural Project, Tyler, Tx
		  McKinney One, Dallas, Tx
		  Hillside Park Art Wall, Tyler, Tx
		  Hello from Tyler, Tyler, Tx
		  Cedars Union Owl, Dallas, Tx
2018		  I Still Believe, Never Give Up, Tyler, Tx
		  Ride Bike and Recharge, Legacy One, Plano, Tx
2017		  Eyes of Tyler, Tyler, Tx

SOLO EXHIBITIONS

2015 		 Americana, Arcadia Theater, Tyler, TX
2014 		 TXLV, Arcadia Theater, Tyler, TX
2011 		 Some luck involved, gallery Carousell, Riga, Latvia
2010 		 Spinninghead, gallery Carousell, Riga, Latvia

SELECTED GROUP EXHIBITIONS

2019		  Color, Maddrey PLLC, Dallas, TX

2018		  46th International Exhibition, Brownsville Museum of Fine Art, Brownsville, TX
		  Evening in The Stars, Maddrey PLLC, Dallas, TX
		  Texas Vignette, Women’s Museum, Dallas, TX

2016		  Art of Peace, Tyler Museum of Art, Tyler, TX
		  CAC Annual Juried Show, Mary Tomas Gallery, Dallas, TX
		  International Emerging Artist Award Art Show, TAG BXL gallery, Brussels, Belgium 		
		  [catalog]
		  Amateras Mini Paper Art Exhibition, gallery Art Alley, Sofia, Bulgaria [catalog]

2015		  4th International Emerging Artist Award, Dubai, United Arab Emirates 
		  Weatherproof, MAC, Dallas, TX
		  Klassiche Moderne Reinszeniert, Speckstrasse 85-87, Hamburg, Germany [Octopus Art 	
		  Projects]
		  2nd Annual Juried Exhibition, Artspace111, Fort Worth, TX
		  Genesis, Jurmala City Museum, Jurmala, Latvia

2014		  Take Me Out, Galleria Huuto, Helsinki, Finland [Octopus Art Projects]
		  Something Old Something New Something Blue and Something Funky, McKinney Ave	
		  nue Contemporary, Dallas, TX
		  Hungry for Peace, Tyler Museum of Art, Tyler, TX
		  Diversity, Gallery Main Street, Tyler, TX.
		  Fridge Art Fair NYC, The Ice Cream Sundae Project, New York

2013		  Forms and Structures, Gallery Onetwentyeight, New York
		  Amateras Collection: Jubilee traveling exhibition, Bulgarian Culture Institution, 
		  Warsaw, Poland
		  Amateras Mini Paper Art Exhibition, gallery Art Allery, Sofia, Bulgaria



29

2012		  Holiday Group Show II, Gallery Onetwentyeight, New York
		  Karš Krieg War Karas Guerra, Riga, Latvia [Octopus Art Projects]
		  Bibloss, gallery Carousell, Riga, Latvia

2011		  Heart on the Street, Kunstarkaden, Munich, Germany [Octopus Art Projects]
		  Playful Eight, Gallery Onethwentyeight, New York
		  The Nightwatch, Stockholm, Sweden and Utrecht, Netherlands [Bubble projects]

2010		  Kurosawa. Impacts, Sofia, Bulgaria [curated project of AMATERAS Foundation for 23rd 	
		  Japanese Cultural Days in Bulgaria on the occasion of the birth centenary of Akira 	
		  Kurosawa]
		  Berliner Liste, gallery Elephant, Berlin, Germany
		  5th International Student’s Triennial, Istanbul, Turkey
		  Senza Titolo, Venice, Italy

SELECTED BOOKS & GROUP EXHIBITION CATALOGUES

2016		  The Best of 2016 International Emerging Artist Award (exh. cat.)
		  Nakid Publishing. Nakid Magazine. Mini issue IV, San Diego, CA
		  Transformation in paper. Sofia Paper Art Fest 2016, Sofia, Bulgaria (exh. cat.)

SELECTED BIBLIOGRAPHY

2020		  Robert Martin “The artists being the Wings of Tyler.” Tyler Today Magazine (October/	
		  November 2020): 56-59 [ill.] [online]

2018		  Darby Good “Follow the Rose.” Tyler Today Magazine (August/September 2018): 26 	
		  [ill.]
		  Chelsea Purgahn “Willie Lee Glass portrait unveiled at namesake rec center.” Tyler 	
		  Morning Telegraph (May 19, 2018): 6A [ill.] [online]
		  Derrick White “Art Inside the Artist’s Studio: Gallery Main Street Elephant in the 		
		  Room.” EGuide Magazine (April  2018): 22 [online]

2017		  Lifestyles Magazine. “Singular Vision. One to watch. Dace Lucia Kidd.” Inspire Tyler 	
		  Morning Telegraph (December 3, 2017): D1 [ill.] [online]
		  Mogle, Danny. “One to watch Tyler artist Dace Lucia Kidd.” Lifestyles Magazine 		
		  (November/December 2017): 86 [ill.]
		  Harris, Byron. “A Blank Slate: Arts District bistro lives up to its location.” WFAA8abc 	
		  [ill.] [online]
		  Mogle, Danny. “Arcadia Art Show features works by up-and-coming artists.” Inspire 	
		  Tyler Morning Telegraph (September 24, 2017): D1, D2 [online]
		  Marlin, Robert. “The Travel Project.” Tyler Today (August/September 2017): 40-41 [ill.]
		  Mogle, Danny. “Modern & More.” IN Magazine (July/August 2017): 48-49 [ill.]

2016		  Miller, Sarah A. “Painting Cheer.” Tyler Morning Telegraph (November 29, 2016): 2 	
		  [ill.] [online]

2015		  Mogle, Danny. “Artist Kidd to show art at Arcadia building.” Tyler Morning Telegraph 	
		  (October 2, 2015): A [online]
		  Simmons, Addi. “Brilliant Minds: The Lives of Young Entrepreneurs.” BSCENE 		
		  Magazine (August 2015): 70 [ill.] [online]

2014		  Harper, Faith. “Getting in the holiday spirit.” Tyler Morning Telegraph (November 26, 	
		  2014): A, 8A [ill.] [online]
		  Gooch, Kelly. “Downtown Tyler Wine Swirl stated for Saturday.” Tyler Morning 		
		  Telegraph (June 24, 2014): 3A [ill.]
		  Slaughter, A.C. “A Sense of Newness: More New, Odd Spaces for Art to Become a Part 	
		  of Your Daily Life.” EGuide Magazine (January 6, 2014): 22 [ill.] [online]



30

Reference Letters:



31

Reference Letters:



32

Liability Insurance for $1,000,000

In accordance with your instructions, we have bound the following General Liability coverage; provided we receive a
properly completed application and a premium payment within 12 days of the effective date shown above.

Dace Kidd With Kin'n
4500 Gretna Green Ln
Tyler, TX 75703

3800001
Northeast Brokerage Agencies, Inc.
8209 IBM Dr., Bldg 102
Suite 100
Charlotte, NC 28262
Producing Agent: Leslie Oches

Nautilus Insurance Company

State: TXRPIPY-Q

Term: Twelve Months

Effective/Expiration Date: 3/1/2021 to 3/1/2022

Comments: For policies with effective dates on or after 01/01/21, the Texas surplus line stamping fee will
decrease  from .15% to .075%.

Premium quoted includes charge for additional insured.

$10,000/$25,000 Lost Key Coverage included (separate $500 deductible applies).

CG2107 - Exclusion Access or Disclosure of Confidential or Personal Information and Data-Related
Liability-Limited Bodily Injury Exception Not Included will apply.

Insured must provide a sample copy of the contract used with their subs. Contracts must be used with all
subcontractors, contain a hold harmless in favor of the insured, require the subs maintain GL including
Products/Completed Operations with limits at least = to the insureds, require the insured be shown as an AI on
sub's policy and requires the sub(s) to provide COI, and is kept on file with the sub’s signature of acceptance.

L369 Exclusion – Communicable Or Infectious Disease will apply.

Percent Earned: 25%
Binder ID:

Excess and Surplus Lines Division
TAPCO Underwriters, Inc.
3060 S. Church Street
P.O. Box 286
Burlington, NC 27216-0286

Commercial Lines Phone: (866) 682-7726

Binder Summary Sheet
Insured:

Insurer:

Producer:

General Liability:

$
$

$
$

$
$

$

General Aggregate
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate
Personal Injury/Advertising Injury
Each Occurrence Limit
Damage to Premises Rented to You
Medical Payments
BI/PD Deductible Per Claimant

2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

100,000
5,000

**1000

Painting exterior buildings or structures three stories or less in height98304 -

Number of owners 1 (20,000 payroll)

Additional Insured49950 -
Units 1

* Excludes Professional, Nuclear Energy, War, Asbestos, Silica, Lead, Toxic Substances, Total Pollution, Radon
Gas, Mold, Spores, Fungus, EIFS (Exterior Insulation Finish Systems) or Synthetic Stucco, Biological or Chemical
Materials, Known Injury or Damage, Exclusion – Losses, Claims and Litigation Preceding Inception of Policy,
Property Damage Claims in Progress, Participants, Assault & Battery, Abuse or Molestation, Liquor,
Communicable Disease, Employment Related Practices, Leased Workers, Voluntary Labor, New Entities,
Subsidence / Earth Movement, Oral Contracts, Roofing, Radioactive Contamination, Electromagnetic Fields, Hired
& Non Owned Auto, Injury To Contractors / Independent Contractors / Subcontractors, Residential Construction In
CA, All Construction Operations in NY, Designated operations covered by a consolidated (wrap-up) insurance
program, Year 2000 Computer Related and Other Electronic Problems, Violations of Statutes That Govern
E-Mails / Fax / Phone Calls. Classification & Contractual Liability Limitations Apply and Minimum and Deposit
Premium Endorsement Applies.  Terrorism is excluded unless coverage is purchased per the requirements of the
Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2015. This list is for informational purposes only and
does not intend to represent the entire list of forms and/or endorsements that may be attached to any policy
issued as a result of this quotation.



Deanna Pickett Frye

Proposal-RFP 2021-005

8-1-2021

1. Preliminary concept and drawing

The overall goal of this project is to bring life to an unrecognized area of
Palestine, TX. A mural will bring value to this public space by adding vibrant
color and design for viewers to enjoy.

Public art is viewed through multiple lenses. Visitors to the site will view the
mural from a variety of perspectives such as historical, cultural, social, and
environmental. Regardless of perception, the site should be visited because
it’s bold and inviting! This is what I intend to create for this space.

Included in this proposal are digital and printed images. The flash drive
includes the following:

1. 3 overall designs as preliminary sketches
2. 1 completed design via illustrator
3. Photoshopped illustration onto the wall
4.        Color palette

Proposers may choose the design and discuss any changes. Upon
agreement, the design will be redrawn precisely, to scale, via Adobe Illustrator,
if not already completed. However minor changes may need to be made once
projected onto the actual wall. The artist has final “artistic license” to make
minor changes to color placement, scale and symbols.

*Images in this proposal are owned by the artist and may not be
duplicated or shared with other artists.



Option #1 (preliminary sketch) Each section blends organically by color, shape, and
line. Mural reads as a prizm of slowly changing colors without a defined line to separate
each theme.

Option #1 created in Illustrator:

Detail of Dogwood design in Illustrator

Option #2 (preliminary sketch) Option #2 is much like the first with a progression of
color. The biggest difference is the Dogwood design. See illustrator view below: (shown
with random colors)

Detail of Dogwood design in Illustrator:



Option #3 (preliminary sketch)

Themes are rearranged and the Dogwood segment is different. The segments are
broken apart into sections with each having its own color theme.

Option #1 created in illustrator, to scale with color

Color Palette:



2. Narrative/Artist statement

I’ve always been drawn to environments that are enticing and bold, often
relating to mid-century design and or forms found in nature. My art often
focuses on patterns and repetition. Like much of my studio work, the design
will attract the viewer from afar and invite them closer to explore smaller
details. This mural design is bold and colorful, reminiscent of mid-century
design in a textile pattern. Since a minimum of four designs were requested, I
explored ways of composing panels on a long horizontal workspace. The
individual themes work together by using similar colors, shapes, and spatial
relationships. These individual compositions are meant to be viewed
cohesively, while having separate themes for viewers to explore.

My goal for this mural is to create a conceptual “quilt” that visually represents
four aspects of the heritage of Palestine, TX. The four themes explored in my
overall designs are community, architecture, industry, and  landscape.
These four concepts are abstracted and composed so the viewer can draw
their own conclusions of symbolism and meaning. However, I obviously have
my own defined meaning for each symbol used on the wall; the trees and
Dogwoods symbolize landscape, sun rays represent community, the corbels
and pediment serve as the connection to Palestine’s historical architecture,
and finally the train equates directly to Palestine’s industry and history These
designs do not need to be realistic since there will be a timeline mural just
around the corner. Included in this proposal are 3 different designs with
various “panels”. Overall, each design is fresh and trendy to attract viewers of
all ages!

Finally, quilt making has historically been a collaborative event, much like the
process of painting this mural. Persons who wish to participate will essentially
be creating a shape that will be “stitched” together into a larger composition.
My goal as the facilitator and artist, is to let the community feel a sense of
ownership in this painting. I’ve designed the space so assistants can easily
paint basic shapes without blending or sophisticated painting techniques.
Once the public has contributed, the edges will be outlined and/or be
sharpened by me.



Time Lapse video will be recorded of all painting processes and be included in
the final video. See timelapse examples in Sample Documents.

3. Community Event

As an art instructor for 20 years, I’ve had extensive experience in organizing
events, facilitating art projects, and teaching various techniques. The scale of
the wall is large, but is perfect for breaking down into smaller pieces allowing
the community to contribute without being too crowded.

Community Event Plan:

● The wall design will be drawn onto the wall with paint and/or tape to
guide assistants.

● Numbers will be painted, in the specific color, to mark each color block.
● Event will be held on a Saturday in September (weather permitting)

from 7:00am-2:00pm. An early start will help with heat. The area is
shaded until roughly 11:00am. After that the wall heats up quite a bit
because it’s in direct sunlight.

● I will give the first 15 volunteers an “Art is Happening in Palestine”
t-shirt. Great photo opportunity!

● Pop up tent
○ Participants will sign a waiver.
○ Paint and supplies will be distributed with instructions.
○ The tent will also offer shade and bottled water.
○ Cleanup station.

● Rollers will be provided for larger spaces. Brushes will be provided for
smaller areas.

● Volunteers are allowed to stay as long as they want to help.
● A few ladders and 1 or 2 scaffolds will be provided by the artist.
● Volunteers under 12 should be accompanied by an adult.
● Timelapse video will be recorded of the event.
● The event will be professionally photographed and drone video will be

used for the final video.



● Optional:
○ Collaborate with the Snowy Bus and have snow cones for kids.
○ Allow DAC to sell “Art is Happening in Palestine” t-shirts.
○ Have the newspaper cover the event.

4. Timetable for completion

August 18-20 sign contract and negotiate any changes to the mural.

August 19-August-27th: Remove signs and clean the wall. Artist’s 60 days
completion timetable will begin after the wall is cleaned.

August 28-Sept 4: Prime the wall

September 5-18: Transfer design onto wall via projector/grid method

September 25: Community event

September 26-Oct 16: Finish shapes, clean lines, outline, and apply sealant.

October 16: Send video to the city. Video includes timelapse videos,
photography of community event, and drone video after completion.

*Dates are contingent on wall cleaning and weather. However, I’m local which
allows me to paint when weather permits.



5. Cost Breakdown

Time Estimated time Materials (1300 sq ft) Est. Material cost

Preliminary work 40 Primer $300.00

priming/prep 10 rollers $200.00

layout design 20 tape $200.00

community/collaboration 10 plastic/tarps $200.00

correction 30 brushes: mine $200.00

sealing 10
brushes and rollers:
public $300.00

time lapse video editing 5 paint $1,425.00

sealer $700.00

scaffolding $400.00

side labor (transfering
design, photography,
drone video, video
production) $1,500.00

125
bottled water misc
community event $200.00

@Hourly rate of 75.00 $9,375.00 Materials (1300 sq ft) $5,625.00

Note* The price for the graffiti protector is for one coat. Sometimes more coats are
recommended for optimal effectiveness. If more than one coat is desired, the bid will increase,
or I can fix the mural if graffiti becomes a problem.



6. Sample Documents

I’ve included 5 examples of large scale work in the digital files.

Image 06: 2016 Abstract Female approx size 8x20’ (timelapse: shorturl.at/dCE12)

Image 07: 2017 Abstract Untitled approx size 12x12’ (timelapse: shorturl.at/klFMS)

Image 08: 2008 Welcome to Wildcat Stadium spans both sides of the stadium



Image 09: 2020 Wall of Wildflowers approx size 8x12” (timelapse: shorturl.at/ioHO0)

Image 10: 2017 Window painting approx size 6x6



7. Contact Information and Curriculum Vitae

Curriculum Vitae
Artist: Deanna Pickett Frye
Address: 392 ACR 422, Palestine, TX 75803
Office Phone: 903-724-1671
Email: deannapfrye@yahoo.com

Education
2015 MAAE, New Hampshire Institute of Art, Manchester, NH
Concentration: Art Education with a studio emphasis in Painting
2000 BFA, Painting and Drawing/Art Education, University of North Texas, Denton,
TX
1997 AA, Studio Art, Tyler Junior College, Tyler, TX

Teaching Experience
2020 Spring Adjunct Professor, Tyler Junior College, Tyler, TX
2018 Fall Full Time Professor, Trinity Valley Community College, Palestine, TX
2018 Spring Adjunct Professor, Trinity Valley Community College, Palestine, TX
2003–2017 Full-time Fine Arts teacher, Cayuga MS-HS, Cayuga, TX
2001–2003 Full-time Fine Arts teacher, Washington 6th Grade Center, Palestine,
TX

Exhibitions
2019-Present Redlands Gallery
2020    Bloom-Group Exhibition, The R. W. Norton Art Gallery, Shreveport, LA
2019 Private on-site commission, Celle Sul Rigo, Italy
2019 Group Exhibition, UT College of Pharmacy, UT Tyler, TX
2019 Group Exhibition, Beauty of Art and Medicine, TJC, Tyler, TX
2018    Gallery exhibition, until February 2020, Valerosa Gallery, Tyler, TX
2017 Solo Exhibition, Wine Swirl event, Palestine, TX
2017 Heavy Metal Group Exhibition Gallery Main Street, Tyler, TX
2017    AASH Vol2 Martin Walker Gallery, International Show, Tyler TX
2016 Glassy and Glossy Group Exhibition at Gallery Main Street, Tyler, TX
2016    Natural to Abstract Group Exhibition at Gallery Main Street, Tyler, TX
2015    Solo Exhibition, Wine Swirl, Fringe Salon
2015    exhibit until 2017, Valerosa Gallery, Tyler, TX
2015    Group Exhibition, Thesis Exhibition, Manchester, New Hampshire
2015    Group Exhibition, Remixed, Gallery Main Street, Tyler, TX
2014    Group Exhibition, Movements of the Mind, Gallery Main Street, Tyler, TX
2014    Solo Exhibit, Fringe Salon, Palestine, TX
2014 Group exhibition, MAAE-Recent Works, Eye Gallery, Manchester, NH
2013 Group exhibition, Pop up gallery, Palestine, TX
2012 12x12 Scholarship Fundraiser, Cole Arts Center, Nacogdoches, TX
2012 National Art/Media Teacher Appreciation Show, The Art Institute of Dallas
2011 12x12 Scholarship Fundraiser, Cole Arts Center, Nacogdoches, TX
2010    Solo Exhibition, The Gallery, Palestine, TX
2010    12x12 Scholarship Fundraiser, Cole Arts Center, Nacogdoches, TX



2009    My Very Own Book Event, McKinney Avenue Contemporary Gallery (MAC)
2007    Solo Exhibition, ASG Gallery, Palestine, TX
2006    TAEA Electronic Gallery, Judges Choice in Color Pencil and Mixed Media
2006    Three Person Show, Museum for East Texas Culture
2004    TAEA Fall Conference Electronic Gallery
2003    Group exhibition, Faces of Woman Exhibit, Las Vegas, New Mexico
2002    Juried Art Show, Museum for East Texas Culture, Palestine, TX
2001    Angel Tree Gallery, Palestine, TX
2000    Open Show, 500x Gallery, Dallas, TX
2000 Senior Exhibition, Cora Stafford Gallery, Denton, TX

Select Commissions
2018 Fringe Salon
2019 Fringe Salon in the Redlands Building
2016 City of Palestine, Public Art
2010 Private Art Commission, Palestine ISD
2008 Private Art Commission, Stretford Condominiums, Tyler, TX

Lectures, Presentations, Workshops,
2010 Workshop Presenter, "Implementing Creativity in the Classroom", Cayuga
ISD, Cayuga, TX August, 14, 2010
2009    Workshop Presenter, Region VII Service Center, Kilgore, TX, 2009
2008    Guest Lecture, "Importance of Advanced Art In Small Schools", SFA
University, Nacogdoches, TX, November 2008

Artist Residencies
2105    New Hampshire Institute of Art, Manchester, NH (July 6-August 1)
2014 New Hampshire Institute of Art, Manchester, NH (July 5–August 2)

Professional Service and Memberships
2020-2021 Dogwood Arts Council Member
2004-2017 TAEA Member
2006-09           Region VII Service Center, Fine Arts Panel Member, Kilgore, TX
2007–08 Board Member, Anderson County Council on the Arts
2006-07 Participant, Embrace the Arts, with ASG Gallery

Travel and Leadership Abroad
2013 Group Leader, Student Travel, Italy
2011 Group Leader, Student Travel, London
2010 Group Leader, Student Travel, France and Spain
2017 Group Leader, Student Travel for European Tour











Agenda Date: 08/17/2021
To: Tourism Advisory Board
From: Mary Raum, Tourism Marketing Manager
Agenda Item: Review and consider RFP 2021-006 - Farmers Market/Visitor Center
Date Submitted: 08/13/2021

SUMMARY:
Review and consider submissions for Mural RFP 2021-006.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Review and consider submissions for Mural RFP 2021-006.

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:

Fiscal Impact
Fiscal Year: 2020/21
Budgeted Y/N: Y
Account #: 150-5-740-5050
Amount Requested: $1000.00

Attachments
Lisa Power Mural RFP 2021-006 






	Agenda
	AI_1998_Consider approval of the Tourism Advisory Board Meeting Minutes from July 27, 2021
	       ATT_TAB Meeting Minutes 7.27.21
	AI_1985_Hotel Occupancy Tax Funding Application Consideration – Mt Vernon AME Church
	       ATT_HOT Application - Mt Vernon
	       ATT_Mt Vernon Cert of Ins.
	       ATT_Mt Vernon Preservation Plan
	REPORT- MT VERNON AME 2-10-2021 combined 2.pdf
	REPORT- MT VERNON AME 2-10-2021 combined 1
	Report Cover

	Mount Vernon AME Church Observation-Palestine, Texas Letter 7-15-16

	Mt Vernon - Level A-Visual Inspection - ESC.pdf

	AI_1996_Review and consider submissions for Mural RFP 2021-005
	       ATT_Seth Blood Mural Submission 2021-005
	       ATT_Dace Kidd Mural RFP 2021-005
	       ATT_Mural RFP Deanna Frye 2021-005
	       ATT_Frye Rendering 
	       ATT_Frye Rendering 2
	       ATT_Frye Color Pallet
	       ATT_Frye Mural Example
	AI_1999_Review and consider RFP 2021-006 - Farmers Market/Visitor Center
	       ATT_Lisa Power Mural RFP 2021-006

